O CITY OF McKINNEY, TEXAS

MEKINNEY. Agenda

T E X A S

Unique by nature. Historic Preservation Advisory
Board
Thursday, March 4, 2021 5:30 PM City Hall Council Chambers

222 N. Tennessee Street
McKinney, Texas 75069

PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 551.002, A QUORUM
OF THE CITY COUNCIL MAY BE PRESENT. NO CITY COUNCIL ACTION WILL
BE TAKEN.

Please note that a quorum of the Historic Preservation Advisory Board may not all be
present at the same location. Some members may instead participate in this meeting from
one or more remote locations in an effort to contain the spread of COVID 19. In addition,
there may be occasions when the audio and/or video transmission may not be clear or may
be interrupted. In those instances, the meeting will continue so long as a quorum is still
present.

CALL TO ORDER

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS (For Non-Public Hearing Agenda
Items)

If you wish to address the Board on a posted item on this agenda, please fill out a "Request
to Speak" card and present it to the Clerk before the meeting. Pursuant to Section 551.007 of
the Texas Government Code, any person wishing to address the Board for items listed as
public hearings will be recognized when the public hearing is opened.

Speakers wishing to address the Board regarding any non-public hearing item on this agenda
shall have a time limit of three (3) minutes per speaker, per agenda item. The Board Chair
may reduce the speaker time limit uniformly to accommodate the number of speakers or
improve meeting efficiency.

CONSENT ITEMS

This portion of the agenda consists of non-controversial or housekeeping items required by
law. Items may be considered individually by the Board member making such request prior
to a motion and vote on the Consent Items.

21-0190 Minutes of the Historic Preservation Advisory Board Reqular
Meeting of January 7, 2021

Attachments: Minutes
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END OF CONSENT ITEMS

REGULAR AGENDA AND PUBLIC HEARINGS

21-012HTM Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on the
Request by Kevin and Melissa Mansell for Approval of a
Historic Marker for the House Located at 616 N. Church
Street

Attachments: Narrative
Presentation

21-012HT Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on the
Request by Kevin and Melissa Mansell for Approval of a
Level 1 Historic Neighborhood Improvement Zone Tax
Exemption for the House Located at 616 N. Church Street

Attachments: Application
CITIZEN COMMENTS
BOARD OR COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Board or Staff comments relating to items of public interest: Announcements regarding local
or regional civic and charitable events, staff recognition, commendation of citizens,
upcoming meetings, informational update on projects, awards, acknowledgement of meeting
attendees, birthdays, requests for items to be placed on upcoming agendas, and
condolences.

ADJOURN

Posted in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, on the 25th day of
February, 2021 at or before 5:00 p.m.

Empress Drane, City Secretary
Joshua Stevenson, Deputy City Secretary

CITY OF McKINNEY, TEXAS Page 2 Printed on 2/25/2021


http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=19865
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9e564a05-eb48-4b36-8990-9619657e7929.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e234a451-253d-478e-a0f2-de12206bf499.pdf
http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=19866
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e90e1a93-3628-4a52-a3da-979280ea9abe.pdf

Historic Preservation Advisory Agenda March 4, 2021
Board

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, it is the policy of the City of McKinney
to offer its public programs, services, and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to
everyone, including individuals with disabilities. If you are a person with a disability and
require information or materials in an appropriate alternative format; or if you require any
other accommodation, please contact the ADA Coordinator at least 48 hours in advance of
the event at contact-adacompliance@mckinneytexas.org. Advance notification within this
guideline will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. ADA
grievances may also be directed to the ADA Coordinator or filed online at
http://www.mckinneytexas.org/ada.
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Minutes of the Historic Preservation Advisory Board Regular Meeting of January 7, 2021
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD

JANUARY 7, 2021

The Historic Preservation Advisory Board of the City of McKinney, Texas met in
regular session in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building on Thursday, January
7, 2021 at 5:30 p.m.

Board Members Present: Chairperson Lance Hammond, Vice-Chairperson Betty
Petkovsek, lan Beirnes, Johanna Friedel, Nina Ringley, and Alternate J. Eric Schulze

Board Member Absent: Carl R. Smith and Chris Tovar

Staff Present: Assistant Director of Planning Mark Doty, Creative Services
Manager Michelle Feldker, Historic Preservation Officer Guy Giersch, and Administrative
Assistant Terri Ramey

There were 12 guests present.

Chairperson Hammond called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. after determining
a quorum was present.

Chairperson Hammond called for Public Comments for non-public hearing agenda
items. Ms. Kim Flom, Assistant City Manager for the City of McKinney, recognized Mr.
Guy Giersch for his service to the City of McKinney, shared memories, and wished him
well in his upcoming retirement. Chairman Hammond stated that the HPAB echoed her
sentiments.

Chairperson Hammond called for consideration of the Consent Agenda. The
Board unanimously approved the motion by Board Member Friedel, seconded by Vice-
Chairperson Petkovsek, to approve the following consent item, with a vote of 6-0-0:

20-1138 Minutes of the Historic Preservation Advisory Board Regular Meeting of
December 3, 2020.
END OF THE CONSENT ITEMS
Chairperson Hammond continued the agenda with the Regular Agenda Items.
20-061HTM Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on the Request by
Tom & Lea Chandler for Approval of a Historic Marker for the House
Located at 508 Tucker Street. Mr. Guy Giersch, Historic Preservation

Officer for the City of McKinney, explained the Historic Marker



HISTORIC PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES
THURSDAY, JANUARY 7, 2021

PAGE 2

application. He discussed the history of the house and the previous
property owners. Mr. Giersch stated that it was a high priority building.
He stated that Staff was recommending approval of a historic marker for
508 Tucker Street and offered to answer questions. There were none.
The Chandler’s were not able to attend the meeting. Mr. Tom Michero,
1108 Tucker Street, McKinney, TX, explained the proposed request and
concurred with the Staff Report. He offered to answer questions. Vice-
Chairperson Petkovsek asked how long it took for him to research the
history of the property for this application. Mr. Michero stated that they
originally started approximately a year ago; however, put it on hold for a
good while due to the pandemic. He stated that they then contacted him
to research into the history of the property. Mr. Michero shared some
fun stories of Mr. Louis Vernon Chandler and Ms. Alma Chandler,
previous property owners. Board Member Ringley stated that Mr. Louis
Vernon Chandler had been a rural mail carrier and that Mr. Tom
Chandler use to tell stories of going with his father on the mail route. Mr.
Michero stated that Ms. Alma Chandler was a schoolteacher. Alternate
Board Member Schulze inquired about some of the improvements made
to the property. Mr. Michero stated that a tree fell and hit the house
during the 1948 tornado that came through McKinney. He stated that
the impact rotated the house about 12” and almost off its piers. Mr.
Michero stated that a lot of money was spent making the house plumb
and adding new concrete piers under the house. He stated that the
homeowners would like to keep the charter of the house as close to the
original as possible. Chairman Hammond opened the public hearing and
called for comments. There being none, on a motion by Vice-
Chairperson Petkovsek, seconded by Board Member Ringley, the Board
unanimously voted to close the public hearing and approve the request

as recommended by Staff, with a vote of 6-0-0.
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20-061HT

Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on the Request by
Tom & Lea Chandler for Approval of a Level 1 Historic Neighborhood
Improvement Zone Tax Exemption for the House Located at 508 Tucker
Street. Mr. Guy Giersch, Historic Preservation Officer for the City of
McKinney, explained the proposed Level 1 Historic Neighborhood
Improvement Zone Tax Exemption request. He stated that the house is
a high priority building and had been maintained. Mr. Giersch stated that
Staff was recommending approval of the Level 1 Historic Neighborhood
Improvement Zone Tax Exemption for the house located at 508 Tucker
Street. He offered to answer questions. There were none. Chairman
Hammond stated that Tom and Lea Chandler were not able to be present
at the meeting. He opened the public hearing and called for comments.
There being none, on a motion by Alternate Board Member Schulze,
seconded by Board Member Beirnes, the Board unanimously voted to
close the public hearing and approve the request as recommended by

Staff, with a vote of 6-0-0.

END OF THE REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

Chairperson Hammond continued the agenda with the Discussion Item.

20-1139

Consider/Discuss HPAB 2021 Goals and Objectives. Mr. Mark Doty,
Assistant Director of Planning for the City of McKinney, stated that he
spoke with Ms. Michelle Feldker, Creative Services Manager for the City
of McKinney, regarding various ways to promote the Historic
Preservation programs. The Board and Staff discussed various 2021
HPAB goals and objections. For example: Review the Historic
Neighborhood Improvement Zone (HNIZ) Tax Exemption and Historic
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone (NEZ) programs, educational and
outreach opportunities, improve the City’s website, create an HNIZ map
with details on each property, create a sign for the front yard of the
property currently being featured in the calendar to promote the program,

and possibly televising the HPAB meetings.
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20-1140

Recognition of Guy Giersch, Historic Preservation Officer, and his
service to the City of McKinney. Council Member Charlie Philips, Former
Council Member Julie Vargo, Ms. Diane Craig, Ms. Kim Black, Mr. Tom
Michero, Board Member Beirnes, Board Member Friedel, Vice-
Chairperson Petkovsek, Board Member Ringley, Alternate Board
Member Schulze, Chairman Hammond, and Administrative Assistant
Terri Ramey spoke in appreciation of Mr. Giersch’s accomplishments
and impact during this tenure with the City of McKinney, how much he
would be missed after retirement, and memories were shared. Mr.
Giersch stated that he appreciated Ms. Ramey’s help over the years. He
spoke on why historic preservation and various programs were SO
important. Mr. Giersch spoke on the importance of being involved in
McKinney to keep it a great community to live and work in. He spoke on
how fortunate he felt to get to know so many wonderful people in

McKinney.

END OF THE DISCUSSION ITEM

Mr. Mark Doty, Assistant Director of Planning for the City of McKinney, announced

that it was Ms. Terri Ramey’s, Administrative Assistant for the City of McKinney, birthday.

The Board and audience sang “Happy Birthday” to her.

There being no further business, on a motion by Vice-Chairperson Petkovsek,

seconded by Board Member Ringley, the Board unanimously approved the motion to

adjourn the meeting, with a vote of 6-0-0. Chairperson Hammond declared the meeting

adjourned at 7:03 p.m.

LANCE HAMMOND
Chairperson
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Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on the Request by Kevin and Melissa
Mansell for Approval of a Historic Marker for the House Located at 616 N. Church Street

COUNCIL GOAL: Enhance the Quality of Life in McKinney
MEETING DATE: March 4, 2021
DEPARTMENT: Development Services - Planning

CONTACT: Mark Doty, Assistant Director of Planning

STAFF_RECOMMENDATION: Staff is recommending approval of a historic marker for 616 N.
Church Street.

PRIORITY RATING: The property is listed as a high priority building according to the 2015
Update of the Historic Resource Survey. A high priority building contributes significantly to local
history or broader historical patterns; is an outstanding or unique example of architecture,
engineering or crafted design; retains a significant portion of its original character and
contextual integrity; meets in some cases, criteria for inclusion in the National Register of
Historic Places and/or is eligible for a Texas Historical Marker.

ITEM_SUMMARY: The purpose of the Historic Marker Program is to encourage owners of
historic properties to become actively involved in the preservation of McKinney’s historic past
through the recognition of historic events, people, and architecture. The applicant has submitted
a written narrative relating the history of the various families that have owned the property or
resided at 616 N. Church Street and the role they played in McKinney’s history. On January 19,
2021, the applicant submitted the necessary documentation to apply for a historic marker for
the house located at 616 N. Church Street.

The Silas E. Walker House, constructed in 1913, is a two-story, wood-frame residential
structure built on a pier-and-beam foundation. The house has a low-pitched, cross-hip roof. The
west-facing house has a porch wrapping its southwest corner. The roof above the porch is
supported with thick, square columns. The floor plan is asymmetrical with rooms connecting to a
central axis. The house is fenestrated with one-over-one single-hung windows. All of these
design elements follow the Four Square Style with Prairie Style influences.

One of the few indigenous American styles, the Prairie style is best known as the primary style
of Frank Lloyd Wright and gained popularity in the Midwest through pattern books from
1900-1920. A reaction to the ornate Victorian and other Revival styles, the most common




vernacular form is called the American Four Square or simply Four Square. Usually a
two-and-a-half story structure with four large, boxy rooms, Prairie style elements would then be
added to the exterior.

The Silas E. Walker House was originally constructed as a twelve-room residence. Only minor
alteration occurred to the house during its first century of existence, including the removal or its
two fireplaces and the enclosure of a second floor porch. Interior original features include
pocket doors, cabinets, hardwood flooring, and stained walnut door and window trim.

Beginning in 2018, the current owners added a large rear addition, along with electrical and
plumbing upgrades. | addition, there are two exterior alterations that are noticeable from the
North Church Street. The first is a centrally located roof dormer, which is in keeping with the
architecture of the period and the second is the carport that replaced an existing garage on the
south side of the house toward the rear. In each case, these additional elements were approved
by the McKinney Historic Preservation Officer during the planning review process.

After the recent additions and system upgrades, the Mansells have no immediate plans for
further work on the structure, they are committed to maintaining and preserving the structure as
future needs arise.

Historical Figures Associated with the House:

Silas Earl Walker (1875-1926)

Silas E. Walker, also known as “Cy”, was a civically active furniture and hardware merchant who
served as City Assessor and Tax Collector in McKinney during the first decade of the 20th
Century. In 1913, Cy hired Arthur W. Dowlen to build a two-story, twelve-room house.

Arthur Whitney Dowlen (1865-1947)

Arthur Dowlen was a successful builder in McKinney during the first two decades of the 20th
Century. Arthur Dowlen was a prolific builder in McKinney between 1905 and 1915. He built at a
time when interest was waning in the Victorian Style as the Prairie and Craftsman Styles were
becoming popular and he is responsible for erecting some McKinney’s most expressive homes
for the period.

James Alexander Vernon (1849-1924)

James Vernon was a farmer in the Chambersville area about 8 miles northwest of McKinney
during Collin County’s early history. In 1916, James suffered a stroke that left him unable to
continue his farming activities and moved to McKinney where he purchased the Walker home.
He lived in the house until he died March 31, 1924.

Robert Leslie Hight (1882-1963)

Robert L. Hight began his career in the McKinney-area mule trade around 1900 and later
became engaged in Collin County real estate. During his 57-year business career, he occupied
several offices on or near the McKinney Square and established two subdivisions on the east
side of McKinney that bear his name. In 1949, the Hight's purchased the house and lived there
until their deaths in 1963.

ASSESSMENT: Staff believes that the applicant has met all the requirements to obtain a
Historic Marker under the Historic Neighborhood Improvement Zone Program (Ordinance
2015-12-105). Therefore, Staff is recommending approval of a Historic Marker for 616 N.
Church Street

Under Ordinance 2015-12-105, if the HPAB approves the Marker, the applicant will be
responsible for purchasing and displaying the Historic Marker.

Also, under Ordinance 2015-12-105, if the Historic Preservation Advisory Board approves the
Marker, the applicant may make application for a Level 1tax exemption (100% exemption of
the City’s ad valorem taxes for a period of 7 years) providing the building has architectural

10



integrity and has been properly rehabilitated/restored and maintained.
The building must have a residential use in order to qualify for the tax exemption.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:

Narrative
Presentation
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City of McKinney
Historic Building Marker Application

(Supporting Documentation)

The Silas E. Walker House
616 North Church Street

A. Alterations & Construction

Construction

The Silas E. Walker House, constructed in 1913, is a two-story, wood-frame residential
structure built on a pier-and-beam foundation. The house has a low-pitched, cross-hip
roof. The west-facing house has a porch wrapping its southwest corner. The roof above
the porch is supported with thick, square columns. The floor plan is asymmetrical with
rooms connecting to a central axis. The house is fenestrated with one-over-one single-
hung windows. The home’s design follows the Foursquare Style with Prairie Style
influences. Building elements include pocket doors, cabinets, hardwood flooring, and
stained walnut door and window trim.

12



Alterations

The Silas E. Walker House was originally constructed as a twelve-room residence. Only
minor alteration occurred to the house during its first century of existence, including the
removal or its two fireplaces and the enclosure of a second floor porch. However, the
current owners began updating the baths and kitchen and adding square-footage to the
rear of the house in 2018. Much of the original structure including windows, doors and
walls remain intact. The current owners have removed sheetrock and in some cases
fabric wall coverings to expose the home’s shiplap construction beneath. Alterations
were made to the stairs and banister to meet the demands of existing building codes.
Electrical and plumbing deficiencies were also corrected throughout the house.

There are two exterior alterations that are noticeable from the North Church Street.

The first is the addition of a centrally located roof dormer, which is in keeping with the
architecture of the period. The second is the carport that replaced an existing garage

on the south side of the house toward the rear. In each case, these additional elements
were approved by the McKinney Historic Preservation Officer during the planning review
process.

Anticipated Needs

The current owners have gone to great expense to update the house to modern living
standards while maintaining the original architectural character of the house. Now that
the remodeling of the house is complete, the owners have no plans to make further
alterations. However, should repairs or additions be needed, they are committed to
preserving the historic nature of the house.

13



B. Historical Figures

Silas Earl Walker (1875-1926)
Silas E. Walker was a civically active furniture and hardware merchant who served as
City Assessor and Tax Collector in McKinney during the first decade of the 20th Century.

Cy, as he was called, was born in 1875 to parents John F. Walker and Amanda Williams.
Cy’s father was a farmer and a grocer in the town of Winnsboro, Texas, about 90 miles
east of Dallas. Cy arrived in McKinney in 1896. Early on, he was employed by furni-
ture merchant John T. Nale at what is now 216 E. Virginia Street (the former location of
the Elcair Bistro). In 1899, Cy married Alwilda Coffey, daughter of McKinney ex-Sheriff
William S. Coffey. By 1900, Cy was working with a new employer, grocer Titus Keen, on
South Tennessee Street.

In 1902, Cy’s career took a different direction when he ran for and won election to the
office of City Assessor and Tax Collector. Even with a field of four other candidates, Cy
won fifty percent of the 846 votes cast. He served a total of three two-year terms.

In 1908, Cy partnered with William “Ernest” Ditto to establish the grocery firm of Ditto

& Walker, located on the east side of the McKinney Square. The partnership was not
together long for in 1909, Ernest Ditto and Cy closed their business. Ernest started a
real estate company and Cy left town to visit the Texas panhandle. He was so favorably
impressed with it, he purchased some land near Archer City and moved there with his
family.

Cy’s absence from McKinney was a short one. After less than a year in the Panhandle,
Cy returned to McKinney to purchase Gabe Lucas’ interest in the Sam Massie Furniture
Company, located the corner of North Chestnut and East Louisiana Streets in the
building that Doug and Lynda’s Ski Shop now occupies. At the time of the purchase, the
Walker family lived on South Church Street. The household consisted of Cy, his wife
Alwilda; sons Silas, Jr. and Vernon; daughter Jesse; father-in-law William S. Coffey; and
nephew Orlia Moss.

In 1912 while engaged in the furniture business, Cy ran one more time for City Assessor
and Tax Collector. This time he lost. Meanwhile, the furniture business expanded into
hardware and undertaking. It was not uncommon for furniture business to also offer
funeral services since both activities required the same hauling equipment. During this
period of the firm’s expansion, Cy purchased a lot on North Church Street from ginner

-3-
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and property developer James C. Rhea. In 1913, Cy hired Arthur W. Dowlen to erect a
two-story, twelve-room house.

Despite the success of his partnership with Sam Massey, in 1914, the company split. Cy
took over the furniture and hardware business while Sam took over the funeral services.
Cy and Sam operated their companies separately in the same building.

Cy’s furniture and hardware business was in competition with at lease six other similar
firms, the largest being J.P. Dowel Hardware and the Crouch-Hartzog Company.
Nevertheless, he and his business thrived. For the next few years, Cy was active in civic
affairs and the First Baptist Church where he was a deacon. In 1915, Cy was elected
President of the Business Men’s Association which merged that year with the Chamber
of Commerce. That same year Cy purchased an equity interest in one of his competi-
tors to form the J.P. Crouch & Company. Cy’s new partnership arrangement was likely
in response to his health-related issues. However strong Cy’s attachment to McKinney
might have been, in June of 1917, he sold his house on North Church Street and moved
to Paducah, Texas to engage in the coal and seed business. A later account appearing
in the McKinney Courier-Gazette attributes this move to a period of poor health.
Whatever the reason, Cy returned to McKinney in October of 1918 and purchased a
house on South College Street. The household members at the time included his wife,
two sons, a daughter, and his father-in-law.

In December of 1918, Cy partnered with William T.G. Hight to open a furniture and hard-
ware store near the Square in the building now occupied by the Last Art Gallery (105 W.
Louisiana Street). In 1921, Cy bought out his partner. The new store proved successful
enough for Cy to build a “modern,” brick Craftsman-style home on North Waddill Street
in 19283. Two years later, Cy moved his store across the street to the Heard Building,
taking advantage of its 12,000 square feet on two floors.

Amidst Cy’s business success, his health began a slow decline due to a brain tumor. He
die on April 3, 1926 at the age of 51. His passing stirred the emotions of the town. The
McKinney Courier-Gazette wrote of him:

The passing of this splendid citizen has cast a pall of gloom in our city
where he was honored and loved for more that a quarter of a century
and it is felt that his example of worth and esteem may well be followed
and we feel like the poet, “Ideals are like stars, we may not succeed in
reaching them but like the sea-faring man on the deserts of the waters,
we may follow as our guides, hoping to reach our destiny.”

—4 -
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His funeral service was conduct in the First Baptist Church by Dr. M.E. King with a
graveside service at the Pecan Grove Cemetery conducted by the Knights of Pythias.
Days later, the Lions Club held a memorial service in his honor.

The Silas E. Walker Store continued operation under the management of his son Silas,
Jr. who graduated from Baylor University the year his father died. In 1934, Silas, Jr. sold
the store to Charles Self who changed the name to Economy Cash Stores, perhaps in
response to the Depression-era economic conditions. Cy’s wife Alwilda died in 1968 and
is buried at the Pecan Grove Cemetery next to her husband.

James Alexander Vernon (1849-1924)

James Vernon was a farmer in the Chambersville area about 8 miles northwest of
McKinney during Collin County’s early history. After suffering a stroke that left him
partially paralyzed in 1916, he moved to McKinney for the remainder of his life.

James Vernon was born near Fayetteville, Arkansas to farmer Samuel Vernon and
Elizabeth McDonough in 1849. In 1866, he married Malinda W. Alexander, also of
Arkansas, and moved to Texas four years later. The couple lived briefly in several

nearby towns before settling in Chambersville where they lived for 36 years.

In 1916, James suffered a stroke that left him unable to continue his farming activities
and moved to McKinney where he purchase the Silas E. Walker home on North Church
Street from Dr. R.L. Davis. Given that the active period of his life was spent away from
McKinney and its social network, there is little printed information available about James
Vernon. However, his obituary that appeared in the McKinney Courier-Gazette sheds
some light on his character even after discounting for the edifying language often used
in obituaries of the day.

His life was characterized by industry, stalwart integrity of character, thrift
and good business management. He engaged successfully in farming,
stock raising, ginning and threshing. He was a home loving man who
never sought public office or honors. While he was a man of striking
personality and much above the average intelligence, yet he was of a
retiring disposition who sought to walk the path of private life and duty
well done toward family, community, county, state and nation. He joined
the Baptist Church in boyhood. He lived and practiced the Christian
virtues in every avenue or whatever activity. He stood for those things
calculated to ennoble and elevate humanity.

James and Malinda raised three sons and three daughters. It was a desire of the

parents to provide for and encourage the education of their children all of which went on
—5—
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to careers that require a degree of higher education. Their eldest son William became
a member of the Oklahoma State Legislature and President of the First National Bank
of Coweta. The two other sons Fred and Lem were directors of the bank. At the time
of James’s death, two of his daughters Julia and Alta were living with him. Julia was a
history teacher at the Boyd High School in McKinney.

James died in his North Church Street home on March 31, 1924. Funeral services were
conducted at the residence by Rev. G.O. Key and life-long friend Elder R. C. Horn.
James was buried at the Chambersville Cemetery. James’s widow Malinda and two
daughters continued living in the home. Julia married in 1931 leaving Malinda and Alta
together in the house. When Alta died in 1941, Malinda moved to Hamilton, Texas at the
age of 92 to be with her daughter Julia (Vernon) Bratton. Malinda died there in 1949,
eight days after her 100th birthday. She is buried in the Chambersville Cemetery next to
her husband.

Robert Leslie Hight (1882-1963)

Robert L. Hight began his career in the McKinney-area mule trade around 1900 and
later became engaged in Collin County real estate. During his 57-year business career,
he occupied several offices on or near the McKinney Square and established two subdi-
visions on the east side of McKinney that bear his name.

Les, as he was called, was born in White River, Arkansas to farmer Joseph B. Hight and
Mary Jane Jackson in 1882. He was the fourth of nine children, three of which died in
infancy. When Les was still a child, the family moved to the Woodlawn community three
miles northeast of McKinney.

In 1901 at the age of 19, Les had the good fortune to partner with mule trader and
grocer William “Ernest” Ditto. The two men formed the livestock trading firm known

as Hight & Ditto. The firm achieved quick success, garnering a contract to supply the
U.S. Army with mules. A month later the British government purchased 75 mules to be
shipped to South Africa to be used in Britain’s war against the Boers.

Les’s partnership with Ernest Ditto was short lived as deduced by a small ad appeared
in an April of 1903 issue of McKinney Democrat indicating that Les was partnered with
the “Russell Brothers,” selling and trading real estate, horses, mules and cattle. George
and Charles Russell were well-established traders at the time and would have been
good business experience for the 21-year-old Les. The partnership provided Les with
—6—
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more than good experience. Four months after joining the firm, Les married the Russell
brother’s niece, Lelia Russell. Lelia was the daughter of grocer Elijah D. Russell and
Lydia Strode who came to Farmersville from Arkansas before Lelia’s birth in 1885.

Not long after they were married, Les was involved in an accident that left him maimed
for life. Les’s granddaughter Martha Ann (Hight) Prince wrote of this event in the 1994
publication Collin County, Texas, Families:

Early in their marriage, Les had a terrible accident. A double team of
horses drawing a buggy ran away and he was thrown out, causing one of
his legs to be badly broken. He managed to get to a nearby farmhouse,
where a doctor was summoned. It was determined that the only thing to
be done was to amputate that leg below the knee and the surgery was
performed on the kitchen table of the farmhouse.

In the 1960’s his daughter-in-law, Marjorie (Allison) Hight, was driving
several ladies who lived in the nursing home at Fowler Home in Dallas,
Texas, to do some shopping. One of the ladies in the car recognized the
Hight name and mentioned that she had known a Mr. Hight many years
before. This lady had been a small child at the time of the accident, and
had held the lantern so the doctor could see to amputate Les’s leg.

Wheelchairs were not yet available, so Les used a rocking chair during
his recovery much as wheelchairs are used today, with Lelia pulling

it around for him. He was later fitted with a wooden leg, and used a
“walking stick” or cane for aid.

The accident forced Les to give up the livestock trading business and devote his ener-
gies to real estate. Les stayed with the Russell brothers until 1907, forming a new part-
nership with McCarty Moore that focused solely on the real estate trade. Once again,
Les found himself in a short-lived business relationship. Six month’s after teaming up
with Mr. Moore, Les was opening a new real estate office by himself on East Louisiana
Street. In 1909, Les rejoined with is former partner Ernest Ditto who left his grocery
business to engage in real estate full time.

Les’s business and influence in McKinney quickly flourished. As President of the Collin
County Real Estate Dealers’ Association in 1911, Les expanded the organization’s
membership throughout the County. That same year, he was involved in a 20-acre

land transaction in north McKinney that promised to bring an agricultural college to
McKinney. That development never came to fruition despite the political efforts of Texas
Senate Representative Tom Perkins. He was also an active member of the First Baptist
Church.
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As Les’s career ascended, his personal life was beset with tragedy. In February of 1912,
Les and Lelia’s two-year-old daughter Linnie Lucile died of pneumonia. Not even a year
passed before their eldest son Russell became one of the eight people to die when the
Odd Fellows building that housed the Cheeves Brothers Department Store collapsed in
January of 1913. Lelia’s sister Stella took the four-year-old child shopping with her that
day. As they were leaving the building, the three-story, brick structure collapsed around
them. Stella, who was trapped beneath the building’s iron awning, survived, Russell did
not.

The partnership between Ernest Ditto and Les dissolved soon after the tragedy. After
which, Les transacted business under the name R.L. Hight Land Company. His solo
business arrangement thrived for several years. In 1923, Les moved his office to J.P.
Crouch building on the south side of the McKinney Square, hiring his bother-in-law
Eugene H. Russell as a part of the transition.

As Les’s business continued to grow he continued to advertise in the McKinney news-
paper. From 1923 until his death in 1963, he place over 3,500 classified ads. Despite his
early success in the 1920s, the Great Depression took its toll on his business. In August
of 1929, he moved with his family to Dallas in hopes of finding more business. He did
not. Within a year, he was back in McKinney.

Beginning in the mid-1930s, Les partnered with James A. Lindsey of Westminster in the
northeast corner of Collin County. The partnership ended with Mr. Lindsey’s unexpected
death in 1944. The following year, Les took on a new partner, former automobile dealer
James Gabe Kerby. This business relationship would last the remaining of Les’s career.
In 1951, they established a new office on East Virginia Street, a location they would
maintain for another 12 years.

In 1949, two years before opening the new office, Les and Lelia purchased the Silas
E. Walker house at 616 North Church Street. The couple lived there until their deaths.
Les died in the house on May 5, 1963 at 2:00 pm, two months after the couple’s 60th
wedding anniversary. He was 81 years old. Lelia died in December of the same year in
the Collin Memorial Hospital. Both are buried at the Pecan Grove Cemetery.

James Calvin Rhea (1837-1925)
In 1855, when J.C. Rhea was 18 years old, his mother and father Joseph R. Rhea
migrated to Texas from Tennessee. The Rhea family settled about 10 miles west of

-8-
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McKinney in the area now known as Rhea Mills. James and his older brother, William,
purchased and operated a wool carding machine there for the purpose of preparing
wool for spinning. Later, they began milling grains and thus became the name sake for
the area, Rhea Mills. Their success in the ginning and milling business gave them the
capital to invest in land throughout Collin County.

In 1861, James became a member of Company D, South Texas Cavalry and was
wounded at the Civil War Battle of Corinth in Mississippi. His brother William lost a
foot in the same battle. They both returned to Texas after the war to continue their
successful business operations. Ironically, three years after losing a foot in the War,
William married a woman named Ella Foote, the daughter of Dr. Gerald A. Foote, a
prominent McKinney doctor and businessman.

In 1874 at the age of 37, James Rhea married Mary Gossett. Two years later James
secured a post office for the Rhea Mills community and became its postmaster for three
years. He resigned in order to spend more time on his various business interests which
included a mercantile store and real estate.

James and Mary moved to McKinney in 1892 eventually retiring from active business.
While in McKinney he was a member of the Central Presbyterian Church and staunch
advocate for Prohibition. Though he held no political office, he chaired the county
committed that helped Prohibition become law in 1902.

When James C. Rhea died on March 19, 1925, the McKinney mayor Tom W. Perkins
issued a resolution that flags be flown at half-staff and City offices to be closed in honor
of Mr. Rhea’s passing.

Arthur Whitney Dowlen (1865-1947)

Arthur Dowlen was a successful builder in McKinney during the first two decades of
the 20th Century. His portfolio of work includes at least two brick buildings near the
McKinney Square and dozens of residences.

Arthur Dowlen was born in Cheatham, Tennessee on April 9, 1865, the same day
General Lee surrendered to General Grant at the Appomattox Courthouse in Virginia.
Arthur was one of ten children born into the farming family of parents Harris Dowlen
and Sarah Mathis. He was educated in Springfield, Tennessee and afterwards taught
school in four different counties in the state.

—9-
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In 1891, Arthur married Ida Carney also of Cheatham. The couple lived in Tennessee
for two more years before moving to McKinney to be near Arthur’s four older siblings,
three brothers and one sister who had moved to the area years earlier.

One of his brothers was Prince A. Dowlen, an educator, who arrived in Collin County

in 1881 and owned land between McKinney and Farmersville. The area was know as
Wilson’s Switch because of the railroad that passed over land owned by T.B. Wilson.
However, when the area residents tried to use the name to get a post office, it was
rejected because the name had already been taken by another Texas town. The post
office, and eventually the town, chose the name Princeton in honor of Prince Dowlen. In
later years, Prince Dowlen became a judge in Beaumont, Texas.

The other siblings, Finis, Gideon and Carrie arrived in Collin County around 1872.
Carrie was married to educator Issac A. Looney when she arrived. Mr. Looney estab-
lished a private school in McKinney an ran it for a number of years before moving to
Farmersville in 1885 to teach there. The brothers Finis and Gideon followed the building
trades. Finis became a lumber dealer in Hillsboro, Texas while Gideon, the oldest of the
brothers, worked as a carpenter in McKinney.

Arthur Dowlen had worked several years as a teacher back in Tennessee before
moving to Texas in 1893 at that age of 28 with his wife Ida. He taught school in

Texas for another seven years. However, around 1900 Arthur’s work interest shifted

to carpentry, apparently influenced by his brother Gideon. One of Arthur’s first major
contracts came to him in 1904. He was to build an eight-room, two-story parsonage for
the Cumberland Presbyterian Church which was at the time located on the southwest
corner of the intersection at Church and Davis Streets. Around that same time he and
his wife purchased and built a house on College Street.

Arthur’s influence in construction and civic affairs expanded over the next few years. By
1915, he owned the McKinney Manufacturing Company which made building compo-
nents such as doors, moldings, windows as well as desks and cedar chests. He was
also the Worshipful Master (president) of the St. John’s Lodge of Masons, a title that he
held for years. His business success and leadership abilities led some McKinney resi-
dents to urge Arthur to run for the Office of Mayor. In March of 1915, he announced his
candidacy to run against the popular incumbent Henry A. Finch. Perhaps realizing his
unlikely prospects for success, Arthur decided to withdraw his name from the ballot. As
it turned out, Mr. Finch ran unopposed and naturally won the April election.

—-10-
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Arthur Dowlen was a prolific builder in McKinney between 1905 and 1915. He built at
a time when interest was waning in the Victorian Style as the Prairie and Craftsman
Styles were becoming popular. He is responsible for erecting some McKinney’s most
expressive homes for the period, including the twelve-room, two-story house on North
Benge he built for real-estate-man Ernest Ditto during the summer of 1913. That same
year Mr. Dowlen finished a home for Silas E. Walker on North Church Street. Mr. Ditto
and Mr. Walker were at one time business partners in the grocery trade. It is not likely
that Arthur Dowlen designed these homes but his skill at building them allowed him to
compete in the homebuilding market of Dallas. His success lead him to move there in
1920.

The Dowlen family consisting of Arthur, wife Ida, daughter Onyx and son Carney moved
into a house in the Lower Greenville area of Dallas on Victor Street. In Dallas, Arthur
continued to work as a building contractor. Ida kept house. Onyx worked in the Dallas
County Clerks Office. Carney began a career in banking which lead him to become the
President of Highland Park State Bank.

In 1942, at the age of 42, Carney resigned his position at the bank to join the Army as
the United States’ participation in World War Il was expanding. However, on a training
mission in November of 1942, a plane he was on crashed into the St. Lawrence River
near his base in Maine. Of the nine people on board, Carney was among the five who
lost their lives. In 2009, the co-mingled remains of the five fallen crew members were
discovered and in 2015 interred at Arlington National Cemetery in Virginia.

Three years before Carney’s death, Arthur’s wife Ida died of a heart attack in 1939. In
the years that followed, Arthur continued to live in Dallas with his daughter Onyx. Arthur
died in 1947. Both Arthur and Ida are buried at the Dallas Restland Cemetery. Onxy
never married and lived in the family home in Dallas until her death in 1972. She is also
interred at Restland Cemetery.

— 11—
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C. Property Ownership

Address: 616 North Church Street, McKinney, Texas 75069
Legal Description: McKinney Outlots (CMC) Lot 679

Purchase Date Seller Buyer Book/Page
Sep. 23, 1841 Republic of Texas William Davis

Sep. 6, 1850 State of Texas ! William Davis J /459

Jan. 12, 1870 Collin County Court 2 J.B. Denton

Mar. 29, 1871 A.N. Denton 3 J.F. Denton V /131

Jul. 23, 1872 J.F. Denton James C. Rhea V /545
Mar. 24,1913  James C. Rhea Silas E. Walker 200 / 201
Jun. 25, 1917 Silas E. Walker R.L. Davis 211 / 551
Nov. 15, 1917 R.L. Davis James A. Vernon 212 /549
May. 12, 1949  Heirs of J.A. Vernon * Robert L. Hight 403 /127
Feb. 14,1977  Kathryn Hight-Ware ° Marion Dunn 1063 / 37
Aug. 31,1984  Marion Dunn Jerry Weems 1970/ 206
Sep. 17,1985  Jerry Weems J.B. Sanders 2216 /677
Nov. 19, 2005  J.B. Sanders Richard Webster 6049 / 3899
Dec. 19,2018  Richard Webster Kevin & Melissa Mansell

' This is the date the State of Texas issued a patent reaffirming William Davis’ ownership.

2 Court awards 320 acres to the heirs of J.B. Denton that William Davis promised to Mr. Denton.
8 Heir to J.B. Denton

4 James’s widow died in 1949.
5 Kathryn inherited the property when he parents died in 1963.

D. Tenant History
There were two periods when the Silas E. Walker House was not occupied by its owners.
The first period was from 1941 to 1949. It is not known who resided in the house during
this time. The second period was from 1963 to 1977. During this time, Richard C. Cloer
lived in the house from 1968 to 1972.

— 12 —




E. Narrative History of 616 North Church Street

In 1841, the Republic of Texas granted William Davis 3,129 acres of land in return for
his participation in the new nation’s battle for independence. This two square-mile tract
of land was situated on East Fork of the Trinity river in what was then Fannin County.
After the Republic of Texas became the 28th state to enter the United States of America
in 1845, several counties were split into smaller units. Collin County was such a county,
carved out of Fannin County.

In 1850, Peter H. Bell, the third Governor of Texas, signed a Letter of Patent re-affirming
the Republic’s grant of land to William Davis. This grant was recorded and signed by
Governor E.M. Pease in 1856. Even before this grant was recorded by the new State
of Texas officials, William Davis and his wife at the time, Margaret, “donated” 120

acres of this tract to the Collin County Commissioners to create the new County Seat

in the City of McKinney in 1849. At the time of his donation, Mr. Davis considered this
acreage to be some of his least valuable land because of the heavy brush that covered
it. Still, as consideration for granting this property, he was deeded three lots within the
new town site, which he sold as quickly as he could. This 120 acres became known

as the McKinney Original Donation and was divided into 87 blocks. The blocks were
subdivided into smaller lots and sold to finance the City of McKinney. As a side note,
shortly after donating the land to be a new city, William abandoned his wife and child

in McKinney and headed to California to search for gold. Land records indicating that
William and Margaret were married for only a few years following the donation. By early
1859, William was married to a woman named Sallie (a.k.a. Sarah).

In the Summer of 1841, William Davis promised to sell John B. Denton (for whom the
city and county of Denton is named) 640 acres of land from his original 3,129 grant.

At the time, Mr. Denton was a member of the Texas Militia under Brig. Gen Edward H.
Tarrant. Unfortunately, John B. Denton was killed during a skirmish with Indians east

of Fort Worth. This promise which involved a bond for title was never recorded but Mr.
Denton’s heirs sued William Davis for performance of the bond. The case lingered in
court until Mr. Davis died in 1868. He left no will which only added to the property’s legal
ambiguity. Sallie, his second wife, became the administratrix of the estate and party to
the suit in 1869. The suit went to a jury trial and the verdict found in favor of the plain-
tiffs. However, the Denton heirs were only awarding half of the 640 acres that was prom-
ised because there was not enough of the Davis tract left to fulfill the entire bond.

—-13-—
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In 1872, the 320-acre land award was subdivided among the heirs of John B. Denton.
One such 4.86 acre tract was assigned jointly to three of his children, John B. Jr., John
F., and Ashley N. The following year, the children sold this tract to William & James
Rhea for a total of $379. The pioneer mill owners William and James Rhea could argu-
ably be called the fathers of the industrial age in Collin County since they were the first
to use steam power in their mills.

The Rhea bothers jointly owned the tract until William’s death in 1906. James held the
property along with his brother’s heirs until 1911. When James Rhea was 74 years old,
the 4.86 acre tract was subdivided into 12 lots on North Church Street that became
the Rhea Addition. The real estate firm of Scott & Emerson ran ads in the McKinney
Courier-Gazette offering these lots for sale to the public.

In April of 1913, furniture merchant Silas E. Walker purchased what was then known
as Lot 4 in the Rhea Subdivision. Two months later Mr. Walker hired Arthur W. Dowlen
to build a nine-room, two-story house in the Four-Square Style that was popular at the

time. Mr. Walker lived in the house for only four years. In 1917, health issues, along with

his desire to pursue other business interests, led Mr. Walker to sell the house to Dr. R.L.
Davis before moving to Paducah, Texas. Dr. Davis owned the house for less than five
months before selling it to farmer James A. Vernon, who moved his family to McKinney
after a stroke left him unable to continue working on his farm five miles northwest of
town. At the time of the move, the Vernon household consisted of James, wife Malinda,
and two of his daughters in their 30s.

When James Vernon died in March of 1924, his wife and two daughters remained living
in the house. The youngest daughter Julia, who was a history teacher at Boyd High
School, left the home when she married in 1931. Malinda and daughter Alta remained
until Alta died in 1941. At the age of 92, Malinda left McKinney to live with her daughter
Julia in Hamilton, Texas.

The house was owned by Malinda Vernon but not occupied by her after 1941. Malinda
died in 1949 leaving her heirs to settle her estate. That year the house was sold to real
estate dealer Robert L. Hight. Robert and his wife Leila lived in the house until their
deaths in 1963. The couple’s daughter Mary Katherine and son Eugene inherited the
house and rented it out for many years. One of the tenants to live in the house was
Richard C. Cloer. In 1975, the Vernon heirs sold the property to Marion Dunn.

The house changed ownership four more times before the current owners, Kevin and

— 14—
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Melissa Mansel purchased it in 2018. The Mansels have updated the interior of the
house and have added rooms to the rear of the house while preserving the original char-
acter of the house as seen from North Church Street. Their efforts have ensured that the
home will continue to maintain the historical nature of the neighborhood.

—15-—
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F. Drawings
William Davis Headright

When Texas became a republic, it granted land to partici-
pants in the battle for independence. There were several
classes of grants available depending on when a person
arrived in Texas and if they were married. Generally, a
married man who was in Texas before March 2, 1836
would be eligible for a First Class Headright grant of one
league and one labor of land (4,605 acres). A single man
could get 1/3 of a league and one labor.

William Davis was granted 2/3 of a league and a labor

of land in 1841. This type of grant did not fit any of the
regular headright classes at the time and suggests that
William Davis (who was single at the time) was granted an
augmentation based on some unique performance asso-
ciate with his contribution to Texas independence.

This grant became known as the Davis Survey and
amounted to 3,129 acres which encompassed the site
chosen to be the County Seat of Collin County. William Davis donated 120 acres of his land to
the County Commissioners to be used to create the town of McKinney. Mr. Davis was no philan-
thropist, however. Shortly after he made his donation, he abandoned his wife and child and
went to California in search of gold. Though Mr. Davis was one of Collin County’s largest land
owners, at the time of his death in 1868, his second wife and child were left destitute with only a
few acres of the original tract to their name.

The legal description of properties which were a part of this donation include the words
“McKinney Original Donation.” The photo below shows the Davis Survey and the McKinney
Original Donation (outlined in blue) overlaid on a map of McKinney’s downtown area.
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The map above shows the neighborhood around 616 North Church Street. The aerial photo
below shows the immediate neighborhood near the intersection of Heard and North Church

Street.
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Site Plan for 616 North Church Street
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Floor Plan

These floor plans show the Silas E. Walker House in its current configuration.
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G. Photographs

William and James Rhea were brothers who owned a
mill in an area 10 miles northwest of McKinney which
became the town of Rhea Mills. In 1872, the brothers
James and William Rhea purchased 4.86 acres on
North Church Street for $379. William (standing) died
in 1906. James died in 1925.

ok L R i
i No. 12 No. 11 No. 10 No. 9
NORTH CHURCH STREET
E No. 5 No. 6 No. 7 No. 8
No. 1 No. 2 No. 3 No. 4 ‘% ToTont Ay
15-toot Alley In 1911, James and William’s

Woese front Joe No, 2,
.

Scott & Emerson

heirs subdivided the tract into 12

WEOFFER RHEA'S ADDITION ON NORTH CHURCH ST. || iots varying in price from $350

The only high class resident section leit in MeKinney, that is close in; sewerage, lights and water at the
urb_."'e following are prices that we think are attractive enough to interest any hooe builder: to $800 The ad at /eft appeared
SR L i L L the a February 1911 edition of
: the “McKinney Courier-Gazette”
promoting lots for sale in the Rhea

Addition on North Church Street.

PHONE 665

W

Silas and Alwilda Walker built their family home bn North Church Street in
1913. This photo shows Vernon Walker (1908-1979) standing in front of his
parent’s newly built house.
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Silas Walker had several careers during his 51-year June 1902, The Democrat
lifespan, including tax collector, grocer and merchant. He Tl ey s i
often partnered with others in his many enterprises. Some
he owned and managed alone.

McKINNEY DIRECTORY.

J, M. Pearson., ......vs.s ... Mayor
—PBowlby ........ ...... Recorder
(8.E. Walker ). Assessor and Collector
3 T TR v P Treasurer
W.H. Sims ....... City Secretary
wW. k. Abernathy .. City Attorney
B Y. Cole ", . .. . City Surveyo
SR BotlB. i i 3 Mars
Wallace Sti!f ....... Night Policeman
|Sam Burks. .. . .. Chief Fire D t.

n.
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nced, S. E. Walker is now
the Sam Massie Furniture
o assure you the same courtesy
heretofore been given you.
flort to please. Low prices;
ng, our motto. Wishing you p
We are yours ror business, :

June, 1908, Courier-Gazette a prosperous

Sam Massie Furniture
Company

S. E. WALKER, Mgr. McKinney, Texas.

February 1910, Courier-Gazette

0
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+ WE WILL BUY, SELL OR ZXCHANGE NEW FURNI-
g TURE FOR OLD

February 1914, Courier-Gazette
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Rugs, Linoleums and every artiele of housefurnishing
goods, See us hefore you =ell or buy.

WALKER & HIGHT
First Door West Cheeves Bros. Store.

f

February 1919, Courier-Gazette
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James A. Vernon was a successful farmer in the
Chambersville area for most of his life. At the age
of 67, he suffered a stroke that left him unable to
continue farming. He purchased the Silas Walker
home in McKinney from Dr. R.L. Davis in 1917.
Due to the paralysis caused by his stroke, James
Vernon’s life in McKinney was a quiet one. He died
in his house in March of 1924.

James A. Vernon died at the age of 75 and is
interred at the Chambersville Cemetery.
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j. A. VERNON!
DIES FOLLOWING
LONG ILLNESS

WAS FOR NEARLY 50 YEARS A
CITIZEN O MceRINNLEY,
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The above photo shows Robert L.
Hight with his bride Lelia Russell when
they married in 1903. Robert began his
career in the mule trade and grocery
business when he teamed up with
William “Earnest” Ditto in 1901. The
partnership dissolved in 1903 only to be
re-established six years later. The firm is
responsible for two subdivisions in east
McKinney. Ernest Ditto was previously in
the grocery business with Silas Walker
before joining with Robert Hight in 1909.

(T s TG VG4 | COPIL ALY AL T2 CLOYIVE! l-t!tu mid friendi. I

Free Trip!
i T0 Carthage &

If You Buy One of Qur Panola County
40-Acre Farms,

SATURDAY

Panola County 40-Acre
Farms on Easy Terms, =

Price $20 per acre.  Beats the renting game 10 to 1.
Ideally located, good neighbors, schools, churches and
railroad facilities.  The chance of a life time to make
glf\? Z(\:Thzzigge from a LAND RENTER to a LAND

SOIL—The soll of the uplund i & | cago, 11L.; St. Touls, Mo,, and other
lignt gray, and a variety of timber I=-ints in Europs and Amencn nd
Erows uron lt—pine, oak, nsh, hick- it i wow on evhi 1-lnnn at the Now
ory, walnut and gum. York Cotton  Excha Rew  York

CLIATE AND WBALTH CONDI- City, wrapped in zllls bagzing  and
TIONS —The I|¢ahh conditions of the buund with ellver ties
connty are good, the death rate is PEACHES—Peaches grown In
low. Many of the umen- who came Panola Connty by Col. E. & Huall
here in the early dnys ilved to ba 75, took first prize at the St. Louls Ex-
Ef.and 30 years of age. The cllmate poition in competition with peaches

and sensons are excellent. from all sections of the country.
RAINFALL—The rainfall hers is Pancla county will grow almost
Ereater than In auy part of the State, snything a nation cats and  wears,
g o small area of Une mule or horse will eultivate as

Houston, The average ralnfall is 48 mieh cotton and corn as two or three

inchos nmt the average temperaiure men can gather, Corn will average

i 7O dogr L6 to 40 bushels to the nere; :uc-
mo‘—rannln County produc- ton from one-fourth to  one  bal

ed the finest ctaplo In cotton that the sweel polatoes 200 to 200 buhcln

waorlil hag over known, It took frst :Ibbuh cane from 200 to LOu gal-

vrize at  Philadelphin  Centennial,
Wuorld's Falr. Paris, France; Chi-

Mr. Home Seeker and Invester read our proposition to the purchaser:

!l\ acre trocts nere, !olll
h

Ll

ifth yoar. Wnadae
Notes to draw ¥ per cent lutorest.

The guickest way to mgke up your mind what is best for you and your
family is to go with us'®o Panola County,

Call on or write us for descriptive literature and go with us Snlur-
day night.

R. L. HIGHT LAND COMPANY,

Office Over Collin County Nat. Bank, McKinney, Tex... Phong 30! \.'__.__-t_:

1t amount of $235,000

[$235,000 BUSINESS

Sinea January 1, 1808, through our combined efforis, we have gold and exchanged property to  the
- i We consider this good, and are very thankful for this degree of success, and extend

e spocial thanks to those who have contributed to our success, elther by patronage, influence or good will, Af-

of remaln, very respectfully,

ter January 1, 1810, the style of our firm will be

i Ditto & Hight, Real Estate Exchange

"epling that we are better prepared than ever to handle the real estate business to the satisfaction of our
:lln «nts, wo respectfully solicit your business for 1810, Wishing all a happy and prosperons New Year, we

’{éiR L. Hight and W. E. Ditto

S
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McKinney Shrouded in Sorrow

COLLAPSE OF BIG DEPARTMENT STORE CRUSHES MEN, WOMEN
AND CHILDREN--EIGHT DEAD--MANY INJURED.

The Great Building Crumbles Instantly

Vietims., Absolutely Without Warning Have No Time to Escape--Fire Breaks Out, Adding to Horrible Scene.
Sobs of Anguish Stricken Women and Children Heard While Hundreds of
Men Work Franticallx_ to Rescue Them.

Property Loss Estimated at One Hundred Thousand Dollars

BY H. L. MARRINER
™

Dallas News

find fifteen or twenty more bodies, hut we are greatly|had been tenderly removed by 300 workers and the forms

relieved at finding many have escaped from the Imildingnndinf thirteen injured persons carried to the four hospitals of
McKINNEY, TEXAS, Jan. 23.—The most appalling| been reported safe. o -y = N n i

tragedy in the history of this city or county was ena(-tedl ““The tragedy is bad enough in all conscience, |
this afternoon in the collapse of two of the city's largest| citizenship of McKinney is gratitied to know that it 1
brick buildings, both filled with customers at the time. |80 bad as it looked at first. This has been the §
Until the ruins, which caught fire, are completely| disaster in the history of the county, and there ar¢
cleared from the fatal spot, the exact loss of life can not|sad hearts, not only here, but all over the State,

be ascertained, but it is believed tonight the death list will! T mever saw such work in my Jlife. I did nof
cight._pe ]t nymber of bodies have heen talcen from | wavtal BRI HaLita. b g
the Tuins and no others are thought to be in the wreckage. | LETHE proffers of assistance from all over thi

The list of injured is thirteen.
STOP RESCUE WORK AT 11 0’CLOCK

have been fully appreciated and go to show that whe
|real trouble there are real people to offer real help."

At 11 o'clock tonight rescue work was stopped by City| ‘ HUNDREDS IN RESCUE WORK
Marshal J. S. McKinney, after a conference w_lth the The entire city and all this section of the St
Mayor and workers. 1t was decided that all bodies |I:‘ld :Gllm‘kn-‘ll toa point that was almost stupefaction.
‘been removed and efforts to find more were suspended for ing, willing hands by the hundreds tore apart the s
the night. bricks of the fallen Im hurling aside smok

« helieve that all bodies are now out," said the Mayor ened and water-soaked timbers, and four hours aff
at 11 o’clock. *‘For a while it looked as though we would | eollapse the mangled and crushed bodies of eight
1 T

| THE DEAD :

Marie Emerson Stiff
s Rosa Welch
Miss Katie Milligan

i esste—Aade

Fue ruins
RROA; lights were strung across fhe ruln
EINE AREE TR0 and, Hghitng up the ome sy

RUINS BECOME A CRATER.|iiub chowed to
The strests were thronzed with cid- | 5%
sens and people In town for ih L o
trading. Suddenly those in the bu

Ings heard a groaning as of timbers
in distress. A harsh cracking follow

g ot e
W scrarohed |
M the other |
: y [ sets  th/ lights the
D i by b weryhs oF b floore of the imlement build-
y implements of the stock, the Ing, len m-
Taemed, and buret through Into the |Hales of dry goods ing eus
Separtment store, and in an instant | from torn rafters, a3 ubi
Hundreds of tons of merchandise and | scene stood on eithe side of the
4 and shatiered ullding ma-| rulned corner 4 crow that numbors
furial rosred into a tremendous heap | thousands, standingch eversth
of debris on the site of the rufued de- | possible, and watehif (he fury o
partment store, piling thirtyfive faet|hor that they ached3 Join.
T the air and setiing in a cloud of | MeKinney is a ©
dust that rose Iike a pall above the|are not lke ihog
burled bodies, while jazged timbers | McKinney relat @7k
thrust wsly heads from the mass. | more closely thansewbers, At
Atter & mement of stumned amaze-| ber of oid and sfiid famifies have
ment, of paralyzed Inactivity, hun-| thelr homes hereld from McKinney
Areds of wiitng workers pltched fnto | these families ny eut scions to ail
the ruins, Scarcely had they mount: | paris of the Sta
od the heap whe tongues of fame News B8 Quickly,
hroush it and an alarm of fire
::!‘;i:i‘m “he confuslon. From all ov-| The news n{*eh:inamﬂ-’\,:ﬂfg.
GF the clty ame workers, hundreds of | like wildre, agrelatlves and friends
Them, and as they came they wers|of those eliheld the bulldings. or
formed Into relays by Mayor Finch | supposed to iy o | -
and those aselating him, As one shift | ings, soon bel
became exhansted another took lis | irain. The thiOne ane
place, a mound of debris | wires were LIALY YwamDe !
The Emoking, steaming rulns became | wested. A £ ae run in

One of the worst tragedies to occur in
McKinney occurred on January 23, 1913 when
the three-story building housing the Cheeves
Brothers department store collapsed killing
eight people, including the four-year-old son of
R.L. Hight. The young child was taken shop-
ping that day by his Aunt Stella. The collapse

Russell Hight
Miss Eva Seare
Norman Presley
L. W, [Leslie] Bush

THE INJURED:

Miss Anna Curts
Mrs. Hugh Kistler
Mrs. Wick Graves

s

a crater, bricks were hurled aside

strests and mangled and ecrushed
forms were tenderly lifted from the
twisted mass of wreckage and hurrled

cntinned with feverish energy.
R. N. Presiey was hrought vi
but died from his burns.

vas under the ruing,

Thy

the ruins about 9:30 oclock. M.
ush, who was ahout 53 years old,
was one of the most prominent men

in Collin county. He was a laige land

owner, and the brother of Walter

Bush, the banker, of Greenville.

Elsctric Lights are Placed.

| teered higerviees, and offers of

e told reseuers | ba

trom Greend with
that city, Fere
and specla}T® Were run on ihe ln:

erurban. 4
Every dor_In the county volun.

tvery sorhd description poured n.
Finding fical help plen..ul, maay
dootors (red With their hands at
te the wreckage,
w35 one of a sort to bring
a Greasy and tramped by
housad! feet, ruin %
nes wellequip
Dipes strung by the
e stretched ae v
sreeike ovil serpants, and buried
9 under the dripping and
planking—shouting ~ work-
thi

As darkness fell strings of electric

John Thomas

Mrs. Belle McWilliams
Little Anna Graves Kistler
Miss Lida Moreland

Miss Jennie Barnett

Miss Russell

Mrs. Mort Shirley

Miss Lula Searcy

Vernie Graves

Miss Cassie Seay -

Colored Porter, in the store

ho first two
ssippl Store,
the third
I wi

d been no |
#s o the bul

all & fire broks

People Who Have A o
nd Friends There, AnRiOUL, | s oo 0T

—25_—

Dr, John T. Watson and son, Claude

(Continved on 4th page) *

’

occurred just as Stella and Russell were
leaving the building. The front awning fell on
the two, injuring Stella but killing Russell.
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Arthur W. Dowlen moved to McKinney in 1893
and worked a teacher until around 1900 when he
followed his brother Gideon into the construction
trade. One of Arthur’s first major contracts involved
building a manse (pastor’s residence) for the
Overland Presbyterian Church in McKinney.

T TR TR T

i;

A. W. Dowlen R. L. Hankal
Phone 627 Phone 304 ]
RO ST s

DOWLEN & HANKAL
GENERAL CONTRACTORS

Estimates made and furnished. All
work firstclass and guaranteed. Nol®
contract too large or small.

Arthur W. Dowlen
(1865 - 1947)

Local and long distance telephone connections

McKinney Manufacturing Co.

We Manufacture
Sash, Doors and General Building Sapplies
Mantles a Specialty J. H. MINOR, Manager *

by g Bt e

Around 1910, Arthur Dowlen established the McKinney Manufacturing Company that specialized
in fabricating building components along with desks and chairs and other items made of wood.

= In March of 1915 Arthur Dowlen
announced his candidacy for the Office
of Mayor in McKinney against the
popular incumbent Mayor H.A. Finch.
Arthur later withdrew his name for
consideration leaving Mr. Finch to run
unopposed in the April election.

e e e S i

CITY ANNOUNCEMENTS

Election Tuesday, April 6.

For Mayor:
A. W. DOWILEN.
For City Commissioner:
WICK GRAVES.
W. S. MATHEWS.
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The years 1914 and 1915 represented
Arthur Dowlen’s most prolific building
period in McKinney. During this period
he completed nearly a dozen two-story
homes. The name “Dowlin” often
apears appears to be a frequently
used and accepted alternative to
‘Dowlen.” He is also known to have
used the first name “Pat” and “Whit.”

A. W. DOWLIN

Home Man. Home Contractor
Patronized
By HOME PEOPLE

Make us Prove i'q--here it is:

Fine Two-Story Home being built fur County Attorney
Sam Neathery.

FmNew&mthmefurﬁedCuﬂEy, .
of Coffey Bros.
Fine Two-Story Home for W. L. Fitzgerald,
with J. P. Crouch & Cao.

All These Homes Within A Three Minutes' Walk
Of Each Other.

mmmn ﬂnmwm m!ng 1 WORK FIRST CLASS, COMFI

m
EE 1 THANK MY FRIENDS FOR THEIR PATRONAGE

A W. DOWLIN, ™ i Corgace

2‘3.#‘" ey
o

e

It is probable that there .is not ancther family In the United Btates with ten children of comparative ages,
all in good health and on as lovable terms, as those composing the family group pictured above. The ple-
tures of these, his aunts and uncles, were assembled by F. 8. Thomas, Nashville. They are, reading from left
to right, top row: Mrs. Alice D, Izor, 62, Miaml, Fla.; Mrs. Petropg D. Reading, 85, Pleasant View, Tenn,:

A. W, Dowlen, 67, Dallas, Texas, and R. L. Dowlen, 'ID. Ashland City, Tenn. Bottom row: Miss Annle
Dowlén, 72, Ashland City. F. A. Dowlen, 74, Besumont, Texas; Mrs. Telitha Goodlett, 16, Hillsboro, Texas:
F. E. Dowlen, 80, Hilisboro, and Mrs. Carrie Loopey, 83, Brownsville, Texas, and G, H, Dowlen, 78, McKenzle,

. Texas,

The above photo exposé appeared in the January 22, 1933 issue of the “Nashville Banner.” There
was no additional information regarding why the Dowlen family merited this recognition as all ten
children lived in nine different cities spread over three states. Also, it is curious that the author of
this piece was familiar enough with the family to have pictures of them but misprinted P.A. Dowlen’s
name (not F.A. Dowlen) and the city where G.H. Dowlen lived (McKinney, not McKenzie).

—07—
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The Officers and Directors
of the
HIGHLAND PARK STATE BANK

Announce the Election of
MR. LUTHER M. JORDAN
as President Succeeding
CAPTAIN CARNEY L. DOWLEN
who has been called to the service of our country

in the U. S. Army Air Corps at Miami Beach,
Flonda.

E. B. GERMANY,
Chairman of the Board.

HIGHLAND PARA
aTATE BANh.

HIGHLAND PARK (DALLAS), TEXAS
MEMEER FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION

Carney L. Dowlen, the son of Arthur and Ida Dowlen,
was born in 1900 and attended A&M College (now Texas
A&M). One of his first jobs out of college was with the
Collin County State Bank in McKinney. He advanced
quickly in his banking career to become the President of
the Highland Park State Bank in Dallas. Soon after the
U.S. involvement in WWII, Carney resigned his banking
position and joined the Army.

During a training mission while stationed in Maine, an WORLD WAR IT1
aircraft he was in crashed into the St. Lawrence River y ;
killing five of the nine crew members. Carney was one of JANSIG 19 OW
the five men Killed. It was not until 2009 that the remains o (ApD

. : ; NIV L (9%
of the fallen soldiers were discovered. In 2015, the mixed & ok '
remains were interred and a memorial placed at Arlington
National Cemetery

—-28-—
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Evolution of Architectural Style

The first decade of the 20th Century witnessed a
huge shift in architectural styles. This shift paralleled
the cultural shift that saw improving labor conditions
and a growing middle class that had enough money
to spend on property and homes, modest though _ :
they may be. This new culture had little affinity, for i

the older aesthetic which valued ornamentation and :I- HE ]M H! i ;
grandiosity. This change is clearly apparent in the e '
architecture of McKinney. éHaStmgs’-‘-,Mlchlg.an P i

R

Queen Anne Style

Before 1900, the preferred style was what we now ;
call the Queen Anne Style. This style is characterized -
by complex gabled roofs, asymmetry, turrets, and an
abundance of elaborate ornamentation. Locally, the
Aron House at 523 W. Hunt Street exhibits this archi-
tectural vocabulary.

Prairie and Foursquare Styles

Just before the 20th Century began, however,

new architectural forms offered by the Prairie

and Foursquare Styles began appearing in home
construction. The Bristol House at 508 Tucker Street
was one of the first homes in McKinney to incorporate :
the deep eaves, hip roofs, and the sprawling geom-
etry these new styles offered.

The Heard-Craig House at 205 W. Hunt Street
designed by Dallas architect J.E. Flanders incorpo-
rates many of these new forms into a home that is
still essentially Queen Anne but mimics the symmetry
of the American Foursquare Style (see 801 N. Church
St.). Five years later, Flanders moved closer to
creating a pure Prairie Style home when he designed
the J.R. Brown House at 509 N. Church Street.
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By the early 1900s, not all builders and clients were
ready to abandon the old familiar style and the
prestige it conveyed. This resulted in many homes
becoming an eclectic mixture of new and old styles.

McKinney builder W.J. Higgins built the Brooke
House at 608 W. Hunt Street in 1910. It appears
that neither the builder nor the client was ready to
embrace the “moderness” of Flander’s designed.
Instead, the Brooke house preserves the gabled
pavilions and proportions of the Queen Anne Style
while adding sprawling porches on the first and
second floors. The result is a marriage of two styles
with a practical solution to ventilation.

The Davenport House which sits across the street

at 613 W. Hunt Street was probably build by Higgins
in the same year as the Brooke House. Higgins was
an accomplished builder of American Foursquare
homes and incorporated its boxy, pyramidal forms
into many of the homes he built. The pavilion which
had a gabled roof in the Brooke House now has a hip
roof. Though Davenport house moves further away
from the Queen Anne Style, the builder put an orna-
mental finial at the apex of the roof to remind us of
the home’s (and the client’s) appreciation of tradition.

Elsewhere in McKinney, builders and clients were
warming up to the new style. The home at 510 Foote
Street build for F.E. Wilcox in 1910 is decidedly in the
Prairie Style with its wide eaves, square columns,
and hip roof. Still, the window treatment lacks a
complete expression of the style.

Finally, in 1911 J.P. Burrus spent $30,000 dollars
on a house at 405 N. Waddill that was unabashedly
in the Prairie Style. The Queen Anne vocabulary

is completely gone. Thus, a new design paradigm
became the mode of the day in McKinney.

“405 N Waddill Street s

—



Arts & Craft Movement

The Arts & Craft Style was another popular alterna-
tive to the Queen Anne Style. This style originated

in England in the late 1880s and was espoused
by social commentator John Ruskin and textile

designer William Morris. The Arts & Craft move-
ment emphasized natural, handmade elements.

was as much a style innovation as it was a social

movement that regarded the craftsman as artist.

In America, the architectural firm of Greene and

Greene was influential in this area, creating what

is often called an American architectural master-

piece in the Gamble House in Pasadena, California

in 1908. This style is characterized by broad,

low-pitched roofs with extended eaves supported

by exposed rafters. Stone, brick and wood were
used to a natural effect.

In McKinney, the Arts & Craft aesthetic is clearly

evident in a house built by Mr. L. Caruthers in 1915
for grain dealer Ed Browne at 505 W. Lamar Street.
This house utilizes the same architectural vocabu-

lary expressed in its Californian predecessor.

Other Styles

To a lessor degree, there are other early 20th
Century architectural styles represented in
McKinney’s historic neighborhood. These styles
include Classical Revival, Colonial Revival and
English Cottage (see examples below). Though
these homes are impressive, they did not enjoy

the same popularity as the more “modern” looking

Prairie and Art & Craft Styles.

-105 N. Benge St.

It
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The Early Prairie Style
The elements that characterize the Prairie
Style are:

* low-pitched, hipped roof

* broad eaves with soffits

* rock or brick fireplace

* porches/balconies under overhangs
* square columns

« tall windows arranged in groups

* horizontal massing

* rectilinear lines

+ 2 story (most common)

The early Prairie Style is a transitional form the
combines the vernacular American Foursquare
form with an Arts and Craft aesthetic. At the
beginning of the 20th Century when Victorian
era tastes were changing one of the most
popular styles was the American Foursquare
house. It was a pragmatic solution to dwelling
that took its inspiration from the farmland
houses of the mid-west. Sometimes called the
“prairie box,” the style was essentially a cube
with a pyramid on top.

Design No. 7011

Size: Width, 42 feet; Length, 30 feet, exclusive of porches

t_* e e oo }

I
onc
I
|

[ == =]
First Floor Plan

Second Floor Plan

The above illustration is from a 1908 William A.
Radford Company pattern book showing a “Prairie

As this form was developing, the Arts and Craft g~ Style home.

Movement was beginning in Europe. The Arts
and Craft Movement celebrated nature, art,
and hand-craftsmanship. One of the goals of
the Movement was to elevate the “decorative
arts” to the status that the “fine arts” enjoyed.

Many American architects began applying the
Arts and Craft aesthetic to the prairie box to
create a distinct looking house with hipped
roofs, deep eaves, square columns and hori-
zontal lines. This style became known as the
Prairie Style with Frank Lloyd Wright being its
best known proponent. The style was impres-
sive and easy to construct and most effective
in two-story structures. The more modest
Craftsman Bungalow evolved along side

the Prairie Style which shared many of the
same elements. The Style was most popular
between 1900 and the 1920s.

Early Prairie Style homes will include many of
the features of the American Foursquare Style
including hipped roofs, a centrally located
dormer, soffit-covered eaves and a somewhat
classical gabled roof at the home’s entrance.
As the Prairie Style matured, these homes

205 W. Hunt Street
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began exhibiting broader, more horizontal
elevations and fewer classical forms.

Popularity in the Prairie Style wained in the
1920s as people become more interested

in Craftsman bungalows and revival styles.
However, following World War Il interest in the
Prairie Style resurfaced (along with Frank Lloyd
Wright’s career) and was the primary influence
behind the Ranch Style.

The Darwin Martin House in Buffalo, NY was built by Frank Lloyd Wright in 1905 and
demonstrates the Prairie Style aesthetic.

— 33 —
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Work of A.W. Dowlen

When Arthur Dowlen came to McKinney in

1893, he spent the next seven years working as

a teacher. He left that profession to become a
contractor and quickly became one of McKinney’s
most popular builders. It is not known who
designed the homes that he build but they all have
a distinctive flourish that seems intended to catch
a person’s attention. Exaggerate eave returns and
jerkinhead roofs are good examples of some of

attention-getting elements he constructed. . =1 207 W, L OUI SIana St
(continued) TS

~“Pearson &
211 N. Kentucky St.
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Arthur Dowlen built homes during a time when
interest in the Victorian Style was nearly all but
gone, replaced by the more popular Craftsman
Style and the stately Prairie Style. Mr. Dowlen
seemed to have no difficulty understanding how
to respond to the different construction techniques
each of these styles required. His success as a
builder in McKinney allowed him to tap into the
building market in Dallas which lead him to move
there in 1920. NOTE: The house at 1215 Tucker
St. is often called the Richard Bass house in many
historical writings, however, it was originally built
for LeRoy Fizgerald in 1915.

W.E. Ditto House
313 N. Benge St.

©J\W. Fields House
E‘:}OZ W.iLouisian

R eE e

LeRoy Fitzgerald ouse

1215 Tucker: St .
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Pecan Grove
Cemetery

This map of Pecan Grove Cemetery in McKinney w . E——
shows the final resting places of people associated e
with 616 N. Church Street. :
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James C. Rhea, 1837 - 1925

Robert L. Hight, 1882 - 1963
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616 North Church Street

)

| —

Southeast




Neighborhood Context (2020)

616 North Church Street neighborhood context

T

View looking south on N. Church Street

View looking north on N. Church Street

Homes near 616 North Church Street

607 N. Church St.

e

620 N. Church St.

615 N. Church St.
-38-—
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Architectural Accents
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H. Additional Information
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|l. References & Resources

Collin County Deeds Records Office.

Courier-Gazette, published by Perkins and Wilson, McKinney, Texas.

Democrat-Gazette, published by Perkins and Wilson, McKinney, Texas.

The Architectural Heritage of McKinney, by the Owl Club of McKinney, 1972.

The Way It All Began, by Helen Gibbard Hall, Collin County Historical Society, 2006.

Collin County, Texas, Families, by Alice Pitts and Minnie Champ, Curtis Media, 1994.

The First 150 Years, by Julia L Vargo, Downing Co. Publisher (1997).

A History of Collin County, by J. Lee and Lillian Stambaugh (1958).

A Field Guide to American Houses, by Virginia and Lee McAlester, Knopf, (1984).

A History of Collin County, Texas, by Stambaugh and Stambaugh (1958).

Collin County History Website by Joy Gough, collincountyhistory.com

“Portal to Texas History,” texashistory.unt.edu

One Hundred Years of the Owl Club, Williamson Printing Co. (1994)

Ancestry.com

McKinney Public Library

Research assistance provided by Tom Michero

— 45—
56



616 N Church Street - Walker House - Built 1913
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Sanborn Maps
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The Sanbom Maps above show that the Silas E. Waler
D McKinney Outlots (CMC) Lot 679

House was one of the last to be built on Church Street.
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Site Plan
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Floor Plans
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First Floor Second Floor )(.
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Architectural Accents
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Work of A.W. Dowlen

When Arthur Dowlen came to McKinney in
1893, he spent the next seven years working as
a teacher. He left that profession to become a
contractor and quickly became one of McKinney's
most popular builders. It is not known who
designed the homes that he build but they all have
a distinctive flourish that seems intended to catch
a person’s attention. Exaggerate eave returns and
jerkinhead roofs are good examples of some of
attention-getting elements he constructed.
(continued)

Arthur Dowlen built homes during a time when
interest in the Victorian Style was nearly all but
gone, replaced by the more popular Craftsman
Style and the stately Prairie Style. Mr. Dowlen
seemed to have no difficulty understanding how
to respond to the different construction techniques
each of these styles required. His success as a
builder in McKinney allowed him to tap into the
building market in Dallas which lead him to move
there in 1920. NOTE: The house at 1215 Tucker
St. is often called the Richard Bass house in many
historical writings, however, it was originally built
for LeRoy Fizgerald in 1915.

W.E. Ditto House
313 N. Benge St.

Edgar McKinney:Ho
521 W. Hunt:St
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Code Sections:

Title:

Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on the Request by Kevin and
Melissa Mansell for Approval of a Level 1 Historic Neighborhood Improvement
Zone Tax Exemption for the House Located at 616 N. Church Street

Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on the Request by Kevin and Melissa
Mansell for Approval of a Level 1 Historic Neighborhood Improvement Zone Tax Exemption for
the House Located at 616 N. Church Street

COUNCIL GOAL: Enhance the Quality of Life in McKinney

MEETING DATE: March 4, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Development Services - Planning

CONTACT: Mark Doty, Assistant Director of Planning

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is recommending approval of the Level 1 tax exemption for 616 N. Church Street.

ITEM SUMMARY:

With an associated agenda item, 2021-012HTM, the applicant is requesting approval of
a Historic Marker. If the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) approves the
applicant's request for a Historic Marker, then, under Ordinance 2015-12-105, the
applicant is eligible to request that the HPAB consider an application for a Level 1 tax
exemption (100% exemption of the City’s ad valorem taxes for a period of 7 years
beginning in 2021).

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The property is listed as a high priority building according to the 2015 Update of the
Historic Resource Survey. A high priority building contributes significantly to local history
or broader historical patterns; is an outstanding or unique example of architecture,
engineering or crafted design; retains a significant portion of its original character and
contextual integrity; meets, in some cases, criteria for inclusion in the National Register
of Historic Places and/or is eligible for a Texas Historical Marker.

Staff has inspected the house to confirm that the building has architectural integrity and
has been properly rehabilitated/restored and maintained according to the Secretary of

the Interior’'s Standards.

In Staffs assessment, the applicant(s) have met the requirements to obtain a tax
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exemption under Level 1 of the Historic Neighborhood Improvement Zone Tax
Exemption Program. Therefore, Staff is recommending approval of the Level 1 tax
exemption for 616 N. Church Street.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

e Per the Collin Central Appraisal District, estimated ad valorem taxes for this property in
2020 are $1,937. The total estimated abated amount for the 7 years will be $13,561.

BOARD OR COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:
e N/A

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:
Application
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APPLICATION for CERTIFICATE of ELIGIBILITY

for HNIZ TAX INCENTIVE PROGRAM
City of McKinney, Texas

OWNER:

NAME Kevin & Melissa Mansell

COMPANY

ADDRESS 616 North Church Street

CITY, STATE ZIP McKinney, TX 75069

PHONE 214-535-3352

FAX

E-MAIL ADDRESS kev6570@gmail.com

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY BEING CONSIDERED: 616 North Church Street

Legal Description: McKinney OQutlots, Lot 679

| PLEASE CHECK THE APPROPRIATE LEVEL THAT APPLIES:

(X] Level1 (] Level2 (] Leveis

| REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS:

(X Letter of intent (X] Legal description of Property [ Jcost Estimates
(X7 Photographs of Property [ Certificate of Appropriateness [___] Approved Marker
(If Applicable)

ALL ATTACHMENTS SHOULD BE 11" x 17" OR SMALLER.

| hereby certify that | have read and examined this application and know the same to be true and correct. All
provisions of laws and ordinances governing this type of work will be complied with whether specified or not.
The granting of a Certificate of Eligibility does not presume to give authority to violate or cancel the
provisions of any other state or local law regulating construction or the performance of construction.

All work is subject to verification.

Owner's Signature: X - }\’\U\MQ,&% Date: Jan. 19, 2021

Date:

Return all forms and documentation to the Historic Preservation Office, Development Services Building.
221 N. Tennessee St. McKinney, TX 75069

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:

Date Received: ' / \ 9 / 202

File# Z2!l— ©Cl2ZHT (Hit& et ]Preservation Priority

Built Circa: (€113
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O PLANNING DEPARTMENT

M B ISTORIC NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT ZONE
cKINNEY TAX EXEMPTION PROGRAM
T e Y APPLICATION FOR LETTER OF ELIGIBILITY

UVl(c]ue by niture,™

INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED
PLEASE REFER TO THE "LIST OF REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS”

By signing this Application for a Letter of Eligibility for the Historic Neighborhood improvement Zone (HNiZ)
Tax Exemption Program, the applicant affirms:
1. All submitted information for this application represents an accurate description of the proposed
work.
2. Filing an application does not guarantee approval of a Letter of Eligibility.
3. ltis understood that approval of this application by the Historic Preservation Officer in no way
constitutes approval of a building permit or other required City permit approvals.
4. The applicant certifies that the project described in this application will be constructed in exact

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: 616 North Street, McKinney, TX 75069

OWNER: Kevin & Melissa Mansell

Name (Print):

Mailing Address: 616 North Church Street

City, State, & Zip: McKinney, TX 75069

Phone: 214-535-3352

Fax:

E-mail: kev6570@gmail.com \ [y »
OWNER SIGNATURE: _X R Wowgg (Y

T

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS:

X Photographs of all 4 elevations XHistoricaI Marker Application (Level 1 Exemption only)
O Letter outlining proposed work

* Please note a Certificate of Appropriateness may be required for any proposed work"

TAX EXEMPTION LEVEL REQUESTED:

XLeveI 1 O Level 2 O Level 3

HNIZ Checklist Rev. 5/14



O City of McKinney
)r‘ Historic Building Marker Application

I 'CKINNEY Submit the completed application to the following address:
E X A s

T City of McKinney, Planning Department

Uw'que b\’ nadure. 221 N. Tennessee Street, McKinney, TX 75069
I. Applicant Information
Date of Submittal Jan. 19, 2021
Name of Applicant Kevin & Melissa Mansell
Address 616 North Church Street, McKinney, TX 75069
Telephone ( 214 ) 535-3352
E-mail Address kev6570@gmail.com

II. Owner Information (If different from Applicant)

Name of Owner - same -
Address

Telephone ( )
E-mail Address

III. General Building Information

Name of Building Silas E. Walker House

Address of Building 616 North Church Street, McKinney, TX 75069
Date of Construction Known 1913 or Circa

(If not known provide approximate date Circa )

Architect/Designer unknown

Builder/Contractor Arthur W. Dowlen

Architectural Period/Style Early Prairie Style

Legal Property Description of Current Location (Lot and Block Numbers)

McKinney Outlots, Lot 679

Does the building remain on its original site?

Yes
[_] No (specify original location)
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Indicate the original and adapted uses of the building.

ERXNEEREEREN

IV.

Original Uses

Agriculture

Commerce

Education

Government

Healthcare

Industrial

Recreation

Religious

Residential

Social

Transportation

5 O

Architectural Description

Adapted Uses

Agriculture

Commerce

Education

Government

Healthcare

Industrial

Recreation

Religious

Residential

Social

Transportation

A. Physical Characteristics

Number of stories
Orientation
Floor Plan
Open plan
L-plan
Modified L-plan
Center passage plan
2-room plan
T-plan
Shotgun plan
Asymmetrical plan
Other (specify)
Roof Type
Gable
Hipped
Flat with parapet
Gambrel
Mansard
Shed
Other (specify)

(Since 1923
remodel)

Original
2

Current
2

West

West

I 3

I 3
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B. Materials (Please check all that apply)

Original Current
Construction
Frame
Solid Brick
Solid Stone
Concrete
Other (specify)

O]
LI

Foundation
Pier and Beam
Stone
Brick
Concrete
Concrete Masonry Units
Other (specify)

L]

Exterior Wall Surface

wood wood

Siding (specify type)
Stucco

Stone

Brick

Wood Shingle

Other (specify)

IR

Windows
Wood Sash
Aluminum Sash
Single-hung
Double-hung
Casement
Fixed
Awning
Hopper
Sliding
Other (specify)

3 O

Roof Materials

Shingles (specify type) unkown composition

Tile (specify type)

Slate
Metal (specify type)

I O O~

OO0

Other

Primary Exterior Color white pink

Secondary (Trim) Color white white




1.

Supporting Documentation

Please attach the following information. All written documentation should be double spaced, 12
point-font, justified.

A.

Alterations
List any known changes or modifications made to the property throughout its history.

Historical Figures/ Historical Information about individuals who are associated with
the property.
List any historical figures associated with the property. Provide names and occupations.

. Property Ownership

Legal description of property with a location map as well as a list all known owners of the
property. Include original owner and subsequent owners.

Tenant History
List all known tenants of the property throughout its history.

Narrative History

Attach a narrative explanation of the chronological and historical development of the
property. (See attached example.) The above information should be included as part of your
narrative.

Drawings

= Provide a sketch of the current site plan. Include the proposed location of the historic
plaque.

=  Provide a sketch map indicating the nominated property and any related sites.

= Copies of Sanborn Maps ™ showing the house’s relationship to other homes and the
footprint of the house

. Photographs

Historic

® Provide at least one historic photograph of the property.

Current

=  Provide at least one current photograph of the property illustrating in its surrounding
context. For example, photograph the streetscape in which the building is included.

= Provide at least one photograph of each side of the building.

. Additional Information

Provide any additional information that supports the application. This may include copies of
architectural drawings, letters, oral histories, newspaper/magazine articles, etc.

References
Attach a list of the books, articles, Sanborn Maps ™, newspapers, and other sources used in
preparing this form. (See a list of possible references after the signature page.)
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The Historic Preservation Advisory Board requests that all plaques be mounted on the front

facade of the approved building within thirty (30) days of receipt.
N\\ Pcrrrﬁssiu‘acziwner foNﬁaque placement m
X cmoﬂﬂ X AT kmumg,(,{w

Applicant Signature Owner Signature '
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